
 
 

LICENSING HEARING 
(LICENSING ACT 2003) 

 
 

Thursday, 2 February 2017 
10:00 am 

Venue: 16/17 Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh 

 
PANEL MEMBERS: 

 
Councillor David Airey

 Councillor Margaret Allingham
 Councillor Wayne Irish
 Councillor Derek Pretty 

 
Staff Contacts: 

Matt Dobrowolski, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 8080; 
Email: licensing.panel@eastleigh.gov.uk 

Amy Thorne, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 8361;  
Email: licensing.panel@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE FOR: 
 

1. The Application    (Pages 1 - 32)  
  
 Hiltingbury Still 

15 Thornbury Wood 
Chandler’s Ford  
SO53 5DP 

  
2. Representations from Residents    (Pages 33 - 40) 
 
3. Eastleigh Borough Council's Licensing Hearing Procedure    (Pages 41 - 44) 
 
4. Rights of Parties    (Pages 45 - 46) 
 
5. The Decision      
  
 The Panel withdraw to make their decision  
  

26 January 2017 



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION-MAKER LICENSING PANEL 

SUBJECT 
HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A 
PREMISES LICENCE-  
HILTINGBURY STILL, 15 THORNBURY WOOD, CHANDLER’S 
FORD SO53 5DP 

DATE OF HEARING THURSDAY 02 FEBRUARY 2017 – 10:00 AM 

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES. 

E-mail liquor.licence@eastleigh.gov.uk 

Application Date : 22 NOVEMBER 2016 Application Received 12 DECEMBER 2016 

Application Valid : 12 DECEMBER 2016 Reference : 2016/00446/05EPRN 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100019679 

Representations from Responsible Authorities
Responsible Authority Satisfactory? 

EBC Child Protection Yes 

Hampshire Fire And Rescue Yes 

EBC Development Control - Licensing Yes 

EBC Environmental Health - Licensing No Response Received 

Public Health No Response Received 

Hampshire Constabulary Yes 

Trading Standards Yes 

Page 1 of 38

1

Agenda Item 1



Other Representations
Name Address Contributor Type 
Mr. H Brown                  42 Thornbury Wood, Chandler's Ford SO53 5DQ     Resident   

Mrs. A Brown                 42 Thornbury Wood, Chandler's Ford SO53 5DQ     Resident 

Mr. Stephen O'Connell  46 Thornbury Wood, Chandler's Ford SO53 5DQ     Resident 

Mrs. M O’Connell          46 Thornbury Wood, Chandler's Ford SO53 5DQ     Resident 

Mrs. Margaret Kirby       44 Thornbury Wood, Chandler's Ford SO53 5DQ    Resident 

Legal Implications 
1. The legislation specifically restricts the grounds on which the licensing panel may

refuse an application for variation of a premises licence, or impose conditions. The
legislation provides for a presumption of grant of an application for variation of a
premises licence, subject to the determination of the application with a view to
promoting the licensing objectives in the overall interests of the local community. In
doing so the licensing panel must give appropriate weight to:

• the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

• the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the
parties;

• its own statement of licensing policy

• the Statutory Guidance

2. An application may be refused in part and thereby only permit some of the licensable
activities sought.

3. An applicant for variation of a premises licence whose application has been refused, or
who is aggrieved by conditions imposed, may appeal against the decision to the
Magistrates' Court. Any other person, who made a valid representation, may appeal to
the Magistrates’ Court against the decision to grant the application or against any
conditions imposed.

4. In considering this application the licensing Panel will sit in a quasi-judicial capacity and
is thus obliged to consider the application in accordance, in particular, with both the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as amended) and the rules of natural
justice. The practical effect of this is that the licensing panel must makes its decision
based on evidence submitted in accordance with the legislation and give adequate
reasons for reaching its decision.

5. The licensing panel must also have regard to:

• The Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the licensing panel under
a duty to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to
prevent, crime and disorder in its area.

• The Human Rights Act 1998
The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with the
European Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the licensing panel to
act in a way that is incompatible (or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with

Page 2 of 38

2



the rights protected by the Act. Any action undertaken by the licensing panel that 
could have an effect upon another person’s Human Rights must be taken having 
regard to the principle of proportionality - the need to balance the rights of the 
individual with the rights of the community as a whole. Any action taken by the 
licensing panel which affect another's rights must be no more onerous than is 
necessary in a democratic society. The matters set out in this report must be 
considered in light of the above obligations. 

Copies of the application for variation of a premises licence and the representations to 
it are annexed to this report. 

Page 3 of 38

3



Summary of application 
Applicant Dr. Clio Bellenis & Mr. Malcolm Stein 

Agent for licence Holder: N/A 

Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

Dr. Clio Bellenis 

Activities and times applied for 
Supply by retail of alcohol 

Monday   00:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday   00:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday  00:00  - 00:00 
Thursday   00:00  - 00:00 
Friday   00:00  - 00:00 
Saturday   00:00  - 00:00 
Sunday   00:00  - 00:00 

Alcohol is supplied for consumption off the 
premises. The premises will not be open to the 
public. 

Page 4 of 38

Application form  - pages 5-25
Plans of site        - pages 26-27
Police advice prior to application - page 28
Applicant offering amendment to wording - page 29
Police giving no representation  - page 30
Mr. H Brown representation - page 31-33
Mrs. A Brown representation - page 34
Mr. S O'Connell representation - page 35
Mrs. M O'Connell representation - page 36
Mrs. M Kirby representation - page 37-38

DPS personal licence has now been granted  2016/01366/06EPEN dated 12/12/2016 

4



Page 5 of 38

5



Page 6 of 38

6



Page 7 of 38

Checked means 10/01/2017 APJ

7



Page 8 of 38

8



Page 9 of 38

9



Page 10 of 38

10



Page 11 of 38

11



Page 12 of 38

12



Page 13 of 38

13



Page 14 of 38

14



Page 15 of 38

15



Page 16 of 38

16



Page 17 of 38

17



Page 18 of 38

18



Page 19 of 38

19



Page 20 of 38

20



Page 21 of 38

21



Page 22 of 38

22



Page 23 of 38

23



Page 24 of 38

24



Page 25 of 38

25



Page 26 of 38

26



Page 27 of 38

27



Page 28 of 38

28



From: Malcolm Stein
To: Licensing
Cc: Clio Bellenis; force.licensing@hampshire.pnn.police.uk
Subject: Fwd: Premises Application
Date: 22 December 2016 15:38:23
Attachments:

Dear Andy

Having had a discussion with Sharon Cross from Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service
HQ this morning, we wondered if an amendment to our requested licence
condition would better reflect the intention. (The word "guest" suggested to her
that we may be running a B&B. We are not!)

from: 

No-one will be invited to the house for the purpose of buying alcohol. Alcohol may
be sold to guests already at the premises only when the purchase of alcohol is
ancilliary to the reason for the visit.

to:

No-one will be invited to the house for the purpose of buying alcohol. Alcohol may
be sold to friends or family already at the premises only when the purchase of
alcohol is ancilliary to the reason for the visit.

(Change highlighted by italics and undelrlining)

Kind regards, Malcolm

Page 29 of 38

29



Page 30 of 38

30



Page 31 of 38

31



This page is intentionally left blank



From: H Brown
To: liquor.licence@eastleigh.gov.uk
Cc: Judith Grajewski; Cllr Alan Broadhurst; Steve BRINE
Subject: 2016/00446/05EPRN
Date: 09 January 2017 00:16:49

Application for a Premises Licence
Dr. Clio Bellenis  Mr. Malcolm Stein
Hiltingbury Still
15 Thornbury Wood Chandler's Ford Hampshire SO53 5DP
 
The letter from EBC Head of Legal and Democratic Services (HLDS), 3JAN17, the
licensing authority, rejecting (with no right of appeal) the validity of my
earlier representation, offers me the right to provide further information by e-mail which I
do as follows:
 
I object to the granting of the subject licence. Such a licence in a domestic premises would
be contrary to the government's shared society vision whereby the state strengthens the
community. Such a licence would split the community.
 
Such a licence would contravene the four licensing objectives of Licensing Act 2003:
 
1.  The prevention of crime and disorder
Villains are tracking this Application, as HLDS will know. They will see a domestic premises
as a soft touch if the licence is granted. They will want to judge the scale of liquor
production and in particular of the warehousing of liquor mentioned in the Application; if
they deem it worthwhile they will strike (codes to open garage doors can be hijacked). The
Application suggests scale large enough to supply direct sales, and to push sales at events
via a TEN (Temporary Event Notice) which can not be protested.
 
2.  Public safety
As the scale builds, there will be an increasing flow of materials into and out of the
domestic premises, putting at risk pedestrians, cyclists, particularly children, and
neighbourhood cars. Materials might be hijacked by villains. Even though Health and
Safety approval has been obtained, domestic premises are not where one wants
hazardous events occurring.  
 
3.  The prevention of public nuisance
Villains may park and watch to judge scale. Or they may indulge in bribery and corruption
of locals to keep watch and be aware. Material movement could be a nuisance if not a
safety risk.
 
4.  The protection of children from harm
Children will be at risk in both physical and mental ways. Physically there is risk from
unusual traffic flow; from curiosity; from outright villainy. Mentally it is harmful for
children to become aware that adults and authorities had approved the production,
storage and retailing of liquor at a domestic house akin to their own - it is a short step to
consumption of liquor. Further, children may be harmed by awareness of a build up of

Page 32 of 38

33

Agenda Item 2



Page 33 of 38

34



Page 34 of 38

35



From: Stephen O"Connell
To: Licensing
Subject: Representation concerning Application 2016/00446/05EPRN
Date: 03 January 2017 17:06:13

Dear Sir,  

I wish to make a representation concerning the Application for a Premises Licence for

The Hiltingbury Still
15 Thornbury Wood, Chandler’s Ford, SO53 5DP
Ref 2016/00446/05EPRN

This Application appears to contain false statements, as the wording of the Application is
at considerable variance with the Website for the Hiltingbury Still.  On the Website, (
http://thornbury-spirits.co.uk/wp/?page_id=18 ), it is quite clearly advertised that local
pickup is an option – in other words any person can come to the house to collect bottles of
alcohol.   

The increased traffic resulting from this will cause considerable public nuisance and
danger to children who play in the street.  It is not appropriate to create an off-licence shop
in a residential street.

The wording of the application seems to be deliberately unclear and open to all sorts of
interpretation.  Who is to say whether visitors to the house are friends who just happen to
buy alcohol while they are there?  

The wording on the application needs to state quite unambiguously that no gin will be
supplied to any visitors to the premises, whether it is pre-purchased or paid for on the spot.

Only then will the threat of public nuisance and danger to children be removed.

Yours faithfully,

Stephen J O'Connell

46 Thornbury Wood
Chandler's Ford
Eastleigh, Hants
SO53 5DQ.

Page 35 of 38

36



From: Margaret O"Connell
To: Licensing
Subject: Representation for 2016/00446/05EPRN
Date: 03 January 2017 16:43:31

Dear Sir,

Representation re Gin Factory at 15 Thornbury Wood, Chandler's Ford

I wish to protest most strongly about the proposal.  A Gin Still and subsequent sale of the
liquor should be prohibited from a private home.

1. Thornbury Wood is a residential no-through road
2. Residents of all ages live in the road, from youngsters playing in the street, riding

bikes, walking dogs etc to elderly people requiring walking aids and in some cases
mobility scooters.

3. Roads thronged with parked cars are the exception e.g for family celebrations and
have been accompanied by an apology or explanation

Extra vehicular use in the vicinity due to home sales / deliveries of bottles and supplies is
unwelcome and is potentially harmful to children and all residents, creating a public
nuisance and a hazard for elderly folk.  Although the application says that Dr Bellinis will
only sell to friends on the premises, this is far from a guarantee that there will be no extra
traffic.

My family and I live in the 21st Century.  We have no desire to return to a Dickensian
world where liquor and its concomitant habits of over-consumption, litter-creation and
familiarizing children with the unsocial behaviour of alcohol and alcoholism were
prevalent.

Should our neighbours at 15 Thornbury Wood wish to make and sell gin, they should be
encouraged to obtain business premises in a non-residential area e.g. a Business Park. 
They would then have facilities for production, storage and sale without causing excess
traffic and damage to Thornbury Wood.

Yours faithfully,

Mrs M T O'Connell
46 Thornbury Wood
Chandler's Ford
Eastleigh, Hants
SO53 5DQ

Page 36 of 38

37



Page 37 of 38

38



Page 38 of 38

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

41

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Parties’ Rights and Consequences of Non-Attendance  
 
The following is an extract from the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005:  
Hearing to be public  
14.—  
(1) Subject to paragraph (2), the hearing shall take place in public.  
(2) The licensing authority may exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it 

considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the 
hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in public.  

(3) For the purposes of paragraph (2), a party and any person assisting or representing a party 
may be treated as a member of the public.  

Right of attendance, assistance and representation  
15. Subject to regulations 14(2) and 25, a party may attend the hearing and may be assisted or 
represented by any person whether or not that person is legally qualified.  
Representations and supporting information  
16. At the hearing a party shall be entitled to—  

(a) in response to a point upon which the authority has given notice to a party that it 
will want clarification under regulation 7(1)(d), give further information in support of 
their application, representations or notice (as applicable),  
(b) if given permission by the authority, question any other party; and  
(c) address the authority.  

17. Members of the authority may ask any question of any party or other person appearing at 
the hearing.  
18. In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may take into 
account documentary or other information produced by a party in support of their application, 
representations or notice (as applicable) either before the hearing or, with the consent of all 
the other parties, at the hearing.  
19. The authority shall disregard any information given by a party or any person to whom 
permission to appear at the hearing is given by the authority which is not relevant to—  

(a) their application, representations or notice (as applicable) or in the case of another 
person, the application representations or notice of the party requesting their 
appearance, and  
(b) the promotion of the licensing objectives or, in relation to a hearing to consider a 
notice given by a chief officer of police, the crime prevention objective.  

Failure of parties to attend the hearing  
20.—  
(1) If a party has informed the authority that he does not intend to attend or be represented at a 
hearing, the hearing may proceed in his absence.  
(2) If a party who has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a hearing the 
authority may—  

(a) where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the hearing to a 
specified date, or  
(b) hold the hearing in the party’s absence.  

(3) Where the authority holds the hearing in the absence of a party, the authority shall 
consider at the hearing the application, representations or notice made by that party.  
(4) Where the authority adjourns the hearing to a specified date it must forthwith notify  

45

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 The Application
	2 Representations from Residents
	3 Eastleigh Borough Council's Licensing Hearing Procedure
	4 Rights of Parties
	Parties’ Rights and Consequences of Non-Attendance  




